Public Document Pack

Schools Forum
Agenda
Thursday, 16 December 2021
4.30 pm – 6.30pm , Virtual - Microsoft Teams
For more information contact: Tharmini.poopalasingham@lewisham.gov.uk tel: 020 8314
9687

Item

Pages

1.

Apologies and Acceptance of Apologies/Welcome New Members

2.

Declaration of Interests

3.

Election of Chair and Vice-Chair

4.

Minutes of the Meeting - 21 October 2021

5.

Matters Arising

6.

Term Time Only

1-6

7 - 15

The purpose of this report is to provide Schools Forum with an update
regarding the Term Time Only settlement and to define the timelines for
the next steps.
Appendix A – TTO Timeline
7.

DSG 2021-21 Outturn and 2021-22 Provisional Outturn Position

16 - 22

The purpose of this report is to update Schools Forum with regards to the
final 2020/21 Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) position in respect of Early
Years Funding, and to provide an updated position on the 2021/22 DSG.
High Needs Block Infographic
8.

2022-23 Dedicated Schools Grant Mandate
Main focus is for Schools Forum to consider and agree the main
components of the funding formula that will enable Lewisham Council to
provide a draft funding formula (known as the APT tool), to the
Department for Education (DfE), in January.

23 - 36

Consultation Response - School Improvement and Brokerage Grant
9.

Any Other Business
Note, the release of the Schools forum papers for the 20th January
2022 meeting will have a reduced dispatch period of potentially 3
days.

Future meetings
20 January 2022

All meetings will be held between 16.30 and 18.30

Sub Group meetings
High Needs Sub Group

6th January 2022
10-11:30

Agenda Item 4

DRAFT
LEWISHAM SCHOOLS FORUM

Minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 21st October 2021
Membership (Quorum = 40% i.e. 9)

 = present
s = substitute

 =absent

a = apologies

Attendance
Primary School Headteachers

19/
01

06/
05

10/
06

21/
10

Date of
Appointment

VACANT

PRIMARY

Manda George

Torridon Primary









Dec 2018

Sharon Lynch

St William of York









Dec 2018

Keith Barr

Kender









Dec 2018

Matthew Ringham

Our Lady & St Philip Neri









Dec 2018

David Lucas

Trinity









Jan 2021

Maxine Osbaldeston

Launcelot









Jan 2021

Chelwood Nursery



a

a

a

Oct 2020

Naill Hand

Prendergast Ladywell









July 2019

Michael Sullivan

Forest Hill







a

Jan 2020

Greenvale









Dec 2021 – reelected

Abbey Manor









Dec 2020

Nursery School Headteacher
Nikki Oldhams
Secondary School
Headteachers

Special School Headteacher
Lynne Haines
Pupil Referral Unit
Headteacher
Heather Johnston
Primary School Governors

Page 1



Rosamund Clarke

Perrymount

Peter Fidel

Eliot Bank and Gordonbrock
Federation







Dec 2018





June 2021





Dec 2018



a

June 2021

a

Oct 2021



x

June 2021

Secondary & Special School
Governors
Pat Barber

Bonus Pastor

a

Andy Rothery

Leathersellers Federation

VACANT

SPECIAL SCHOOL



Academies
Miz Mann

STEP Academy Trust

Ann Butcher

Childeric

14-19 Consortium Rep
Lewisham Southwark College









Mar 2019

Sara Sanbrook-Davies

Southwark Diocesan Board of
Education









Dec 2019

Yvonne Epale

Education Commission –
Catholic Diocese of Southwark









May 2021- reelected

Lynne Haines

Forum Chair









Forum Chair
election
pending

Keith Barr

Forum Vice-Chair









Oct 2017

Asfa Sohail
Early Years – PVI
VACANT
Diocesan Authorities

Observers/Others in attendance
Director CYP

Angela Scattergood

Strategic Business Partner

Mala Dadlani

Director CYP

Angela Scattergood

Business Partner

Lurenco Reynolds-Moxam

Post agenda Item 5

Business Partner

Dipesh Gajmer

Post agenda item 5

Page 2

Kilmorie Primary School

Julie Loffstadt

Leathersellers Federation

Tony Marnham

Director of Finance

David Austin

Student – Goldsmiths University

Khushi.r. Jain

NEU

James Kerr

Clerk

Janita Aubun

1. Apologies and Acceptance of Apologies
Apologies accepted from Nikki Oldhams, Michael Sullivan, Andy Rothery and Miz Mann.
The Chair along with other forum members welcomed new members of the forum: Andy Rothery from Leathersellers Federation; Peter Fidel from Eliot Bank and
Gordonbrock Federation and Ann Butcher from Childeric.
2. Declaration of Interest
None
3. Minutes of meeting on 10th June 2021
Typo with spelling of Forum member name on page 4 - noted.
4. Matters arising
Chair thanked the Strategic Business Partner for the Forum Member training set up
earlier this term. Feedback was very positive; the session was noted as helpful,
informative and well attended.
Agreed /noted that the session would be re- run in January 2022 for expected new
starters.
Term time only – awaiting detailed information from payroll to calculate final liabilities
including support to those schools who may face particular hardship (report due at
December meeting).

5. Schools Finance Service 2022/23 & 2023/24 – Continuation of Support
The purpose of this report was to discuss options to continue to finance the support
provided to schools by the finance team. Forum were advised that the Finance Team has
delivered on all outcomes including providing extensive support to schools during the

Page 3

Covid period and where necessary direct intervention to support the school to continue
with business as usual.
Forum was asked to consider two options
Options for agreement:Option 1 - Schools Forum support a collective agreement covering nursery, primary, special,
secondary schools and the PRU.
Option 2 - Schools Forum does not support a collective agreement.
Decision:Schools Forum unanimously agreed
 To support Schools Finance with a further two year de-delegation support. (April
2022 to March 2024)

6. National Funding Formula (consultation) – update of key points
Purpose of this document was to provide a summary briefing with regards to the NFF
consultation launched by the DfE. Forum were presented with the final response as
submitted by Lewisham council, i.e. Appendix A. Additionally, there was Appendix B which
is the response submitted by London Councils that covers the full London position.
The consultation document also confirmed a number of changes in particular to the Central
Services Block – which will have significant implications for Lewisham Council and the
services provided to schools. The report also included a representation made by Cllr
Barnham to the Secretary of State for Education. (Appendix C)
Officers advised that Lewisham Council was already complying with the NFF for those
elements that are part of the NFF - as such no impact is anticipated in relation to this.
However there are some areas that are not yet part of the formula. DfE has provided
assurances that detailed consultation would be undertaken with Local Authorities. These
include:





PFI
Split sites
Lump sum
Exceptional factors
NNDR

NNDR/Rates
The DfE will be amending their approach to NNDR. Part of the process will include an
upload of rates to a portal. The value will be top sliced from the council’s main allocation.
All things being equal, this should not have an impact on schools budgets as the expectation
remains pound for pound funding.

Page 4

However it is not clear how this will be shown in each schools accounts. E.g. notional etc.

Harmonisation of funding by academic year
Insufficient information at present for the LA to make a decision.
Whilst it was noted how schools would welcome the parity to academic year, there was
concern raised that funding may be lost.

Decision:Schools Forum agreed the following: To note this report including the consultation responses from Lewisham (Appendix
A), and London Councils (Appendix B).
 To note the significant implications for Lewisham Council and Schools arising from
the ongoing reduction in the Central Schools Services Block and now the
confirmation of changes that will effectively result in cessation of funding from
2023/24.
 To further note that detailed work is currently being undertaken to review and
mitigate the impact.

7. Dedicated Schools Grant 2021/22 and provisional update on 2022/23
This was a standard report to schools forum providing a periodic update on the 2021/22
DSG update and projected outturn, plus to provide additional updates with regards to the
provisional 2022/23 funding settlement. Report Item 7, Appendix A, provided detailed
actions which are being progressed as part of the High Needs Schools Forum working group.
A verbal update from High Needs was provided to Forum and this was informed.
This report was presented to Forum for information only.

8. Schools Forum Membership/Chair & Vice-Chair
Schools Forum Chair’s term of office expiration today and now formally stands down as
Chair. Lynne Haines was thanked for her service and all the hard work she has provided in
chairing schools forum. Members to express interests for consideration between now and
next Forum – inform Clerk.
Election of Vice-Chair must be the first item at the December meeting.
*Noted that there needs to remain a level of continuity come the December meeting, with
the number of member terms of office expiring then.
*Note - Lynne Haines has been re-appointed as Special School Head representative on
Forum.

Page 5

9. Any Other Business

Future meetings
16/12/2021
20/01/2022 (Provisional)
All Schools Forum meetings will be held between 16:30-18:30
Sub Group meetings

High Needs Sub Group
2nd December 2021
10 – 11.30
6th January 2022
10-11:30

Schools Forum Action Summary
Item

Action to be taken

Officer(s)
responsible

Outcome/Current
position

7Schools
Forum
10th
June
2021

Devise criteria for consideration by
Schools Forum to determine
eligible schools that are to be
supported by the underspent
growth fund of £397k. Can be used
to support schools with TTO
liability.

Mala Dadlani

Pending, waiting for
finalised figures
from payroll firstly.

Page 6

Agenda Item 6

Schools Forum

Report title: Term Time Only
Date: 16th December 2021
Key decision: No.
Item number: 6

Outline and recommendations
Schools Forum to note the timeline for actions with respect to Term Time
Only
Note that the formal agreement with Trade Unions are now agreed. 6 years
3 months is the period agreed, with pension support for each full year in the
LGPS.
The next key focus is the physical payments to individuals:

Lewisham as Payroll Provider



Off Payroll



Leavers /Staff with individual assessment – ad hoc

Finance


Reimbursement advice to schools in January (Provisional) – with
cash transfers in February for actuals - Schools forum to note.



Holdback to support leavers and any individuals who require
personal calculations – Schools forum to note.



Prior year Growth Fund underspend - to reimburse schools with
financial difficulties in June 2022/23 – in line with criteria agreed with
Schools Forum as part of this report – Schools forum to note.



Should any funding remain – this will be presented to Forum for
deliberation.

Page 7

Timeline of engagement and decision-making
Appendix A shows the detailed timeline for actions


Reimbursement advice to Schools in January (Provisional) – with
cash transfers in February for actuals - Schools forum to note.



Holdback to support leavers and any individuals who require –
Schools forum to note.



Prior year Growth Fund underspend - to reimburse schools with
financial difficulties in June 2022/23 – in line with criteria agreed with
Schools Forum as part of this report – Schools forum to note.



Should any funding remain – this will be presented to Forum for
deliberation.

Summary
1

The purpose of this report is to provide Schools Forum with an update
regarding the Term Time Only settlement and to define the timelines
for the next steps.

Background
2

Schools Forum will be aware of the engagement with Trade Unions
towards a collective bargaining agreement. This paper sets out the
next stages.

3

The report also sets out the criteria for consideration by Schools
Forum, to support those schools facing particular hardship.

Update on Term Time Only Process
4

The collective bargaining agreement has now been reached and
formalises the two elements:a. Back pay – Staff on Term time only contracts as at 31st March
2021, to be receive back pay to a maximum period of 6 years 3
months, dependant on their start date at Lewisham.
b. Pension compensation – Agreement of £50 for each full year in the
LGPS prior to April 2014. Eligible member of staff will receive £50

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Page 8
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports

as compensation for each full year of LGPS membership.
5

With regards “Leavers” – agreement that any ex member of staff may
lodge a claim. Ex – member of staff has untill the end of February to
lodge any claims. Due to the bespoke nature of this task, payments
will be made on a case by case basis, where the school has supported
the claim made.

6

The same applies to staff (by exception), who require individual
calculations due to variations in their terms of employment before 31st
March 2021.

7

The next stage of the process will be for each member of staff affected
to attend attend a webinar arranged by ACAS and to formally sign the
COT3 agreement. As soon as this is signed by the individual,
payment can be made.

8

The process has been extensive and more complicated then
previously anticipated, mainly as a consequence of the individual
nature of the pension back-pay calculation.

9

It is planned that for schools on the council’s payroll, payment is likely
to take place from Janaury in the main, subject to the individual
agreements signed by staff.

10

For Schools off payroll, work is commencing on the pension element,
with each schools data being reveiwed and then pension information
validated. Some have been completed and those schools can
commence the process for payment once staff have signed their
individual agreements. It is expected that all schools will receive an
updated pension figure before Chrismas and can commence
payments over the January and February period.

11

The process described should capture the majority of the claims in
the financial year 2021/22. However, some claims e.g leavers, due
to their individual nature, may take longer.

12

It is ancipated that finance will undertake a “total cost verses funding”
review in January and provide all schools with a “stage 1” asssement
of liability v subsidy. Any subsidy owing will be made to schools in
February (latest March).

13

As stated above, at this stage we do not know the numbers of leavers
that will put a claim forward. At the time of writing approximately 180
individuals have contacted the Local Authority. For this reason, an
estimate of potential liability and subisidy holdback will need to be
made. A final position will therefore more likely be known in June/July
2022, following settlement of any claims from leavers.

14

Appendix A provides a summary timeline of action for

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Page 9
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports

a. Lewisham Council
b. Schools on Councils Payroll Services
c. Schools off Councils Payroll
d. Engagement with converter academy schools

Supporting Schools in Financial Difficulties
15

Schools forum at its meeting of the 10th June 2021, agreed that the
underspend from 2021/22 with regards to growth funding of £397k,
should be re-directed to support schools with TTO, in cases of
extreme hardship.

16

It was further agreed that Officers would define a criteria for forum to
approve, which could then be used to consider any business cases
from schools.

17

Officers propose the following criteria for consideration by schools
forum:a. School is engaging in an active Deficit Recovery Plan with Finance
Service. Clear commitment from the school towards setting a 3
year balanced budget position.
b. Deficit is greater than 10% of their delegated budget share.
c. Extra factor has contributed to the schools financial position e.g.
falling numbers in more than 2 consecutive years (but not a
consequence of bulge class completion).
d. Overall view of Lewisham, is that the funding would support the
school towards longer term financial stability.

18

Following the closure of accounts process, Lewisham council will
contact schools that may be eligible to submit a business case for
consideration. The process would need to commence after closure of
accounts to determine that a deficit balance is carried into 2022/23.

19

Schools forum is asked to consider and approve the criteria identified
in section 17 of this report. The business case review will be
undertaken by a panel of Local Authority staff as previously agreed
with schools forum, including the lead officers for Finance, HR,
Admissions and the Director of Educaton. A summary of the findings
will be discussed with the Chair and Vice Chair to support
transparency. It should be noted that all schools will benefit from the
circa £3m previously discussed at Schools forum. This funding is to
reflect on support of the “schools liability” element.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve. Page 10
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports

Financial Implications
20

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The
proposal to support schools in financial difficulties demonstrates the
joint working relationship between Lewisham council and Schools
forum to support all schools towards longer term financial stability.

Equalities Impact
21

There are no direct equalities implications arising from this report

Legal Implications
22

There are no direct legal implications arising from this report.

Author -Mala Dadlani Strategic Business Partner - CYP
Mala.dadlani@lewisham.gov.uk

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Page 11
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports

Timeline of actions required by Finance, HR Payroll and Schools
Key :
Finance

HR

Take Stock

Payroll

Schools

Education service

Finance

Schools with Lewisham
Payroll

Schools with
Rushey Green/Rathfern Alternative Providers

Converter Academies

TU collective bargaining
agreement for 6 years 3
months agreed with a £50
pension compensation for
each full year in LGPS
prior to 2014

TU collective bargaining
agreement for 6 years 3
months agreed with a
£50 pension
compensation for each
full year in LGPS prior to
2015

Academies can chose to be part of
the collective agreement and would
follow the same time line -Discussions currently in place with
HR and all converter /sponsored
academies (previously maintained)

Page 12

11/11/21 Thursday

Lewisham Payroll to
Lewisham Payroll to
undertake final validation undertake final
of data
validation of data

12/11/21 Friday

Lewisham Payroll to
Lewisham Payroll to
undertake final validation undertake final
of data
validation of data

26/11/21 Friday

03/12/21 Friday

Staff action

TU collective bargaining
agreement for 6 years 3
months agreed with a
£50 pension
compensation for each
full year in LGPS prior
to 2016

Completed data to be
sent to Payroll for
Pension compensation
assessement

Meeting with Schools to Meeting with Schools
give update on TTO
to give update on TTO

Emails to be sent to all
Emails to be sent to all
staff affected on the 2nd
staff affected on the 2nd December --advising
December --advising them them of next steps and
of next steps and their
their individual
individual settlement
settlement

Emails to be sent to all
staff affected on the
2nd December -advising them of next
steps and their
individual settlement

Key :
Finance

HR

Payroll

Schools

Education service

Finance

Schools with Lewisham
Payroll

Schools with
Rushey Green/Rathfern Alternative Providers

Staff attend ACAS
Staff attend ACAS session session and sent link for
and sent link for agreeing agreeing to
to claim/compensation
claim/compensation

03/12/2021
onwards
Friday

16/12/21 Thursday

Page 13

17/12/21 Friday

January Payroll Run deadline

05/01/22 Wednesday
06/01/22 Thursday

10/01/22 Monday
14/01/22 Friday

Staff attend ACAS
session and sent link for
agreeing to
claim/compensation

Schools Forum --update on
timeline and also policy for
schools facing hardship
Spreadsheet A --back pay,
spreadsheet B - pension--sent
to Finance by Lewisham
payroll

04/01/22 Tuesday

07/01/22 Friday

Staff action

Off payroll schools to advice
finance of cash flow required.
Schools Finance Authorise
Extra Funding for Schools to
meet TTO liabilities

Off payroll schools to
advice Finance of cash
flow required.
January Payroll Run deadline

January Payroll Run deadline

LATEST -schools can
advice Schools finance
for additional Cash
required to run payroll

LATEST -schools can
advice Schools finance
for additional Cash
required to run payroll

January External Payroll January External
January Payroll payment payment
Payroll payment

Converter Academies

Key :
Finance

HR

Page 14

28/01/22 Friday

Payroll

Schools

Education service

Staff action

Finance

Schools with Lewisham
Payroll

Schools with
Rushey Green/Rathfern Alternative Providers

Finance to determine overall
liability and rebursement
levels (holding some
contingency for potential
new cases) - journal rebate
and communicate to schools
via funding sheet upload -any additioal awards of funds
to schools facing hardship will
be part of this process

03/02/22 Thursday

Schools to inform
Finance of cashflow
requirements (off
payroll)

Schools to inform
Finance of cashflow
requirements (off
payroll)

04/02/22 Friday

February External
Payroll run deadline

February External
Payroll run deadline

07/02/22 Monday

Schools to inform
Finance of cashflow
requirements (off
payroll)

Schools to inform
Finance of cashflow
requirements (off
payroll)

Preparation work by
External Payroll

Preparation work by
External Payroll

Off payroll schools to advice
finance of cash flow required.

08/02/22 Tuesday
Schools Finance Authorise
Extra Funding for Schools to
09/02/22 Wednesday meet TTO liabilities

Converter Academies

Key :
Finance

HR

Payroll

Schools

Education service

Finance

Schools with Lewisham
Payroll

Schools with
Rushey Green/Rathfern Alternative Providers

Cut off period for staff
who have left

Cut off period for staff
who have left
Commence -individual
review and payment
agreements for leavers
or those seeking
individual review commences
February Payroll run
February Payroll run for for those on main
those on main listing
listing

10/02/22 Thursday

11/02/22 Friday

Page 15

14/02/22 Monday

Off payroll schools to advice
finance of cash flow required.
Schools Finance Authorise
Extra Funding for Schools to
09/03/22 Wednesday meet TTO liabilities
Finalisation of any payments
for staff not previously in
scope/release of any unused
funding
30/05/22 Monday
07/03/22 Monday

Staff action

Cut off period for staff
who have left
Commence -individual
Commence -individual
review and payment
review and payment
agreements for leavers
agreements for leavers or or those seeking
those seeking individual individual review review - commences
commences

Schools to inform
Finance of cashflow
requirements (off
payroll)

Schools to inform
Finance of cashflow
requirements (off
payroll)

Engagement with
finance on further
payments and cashlow
requirements

Engagement with
finance on further
payments and cashlow
requirements

Please note that more meetings with ACAS are being arranged for January /Febraury &March
Schools off payroll may agree there own ACAS sessions or join the corporately agreed ones.

Converter Academies

Agenda Item 7

Schools Forum

Report title: Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) –
Update on 2020/21 Early Years Outturn Position and Proposed
Allocation for 2021/22 Uplift in Funding

Date: 16th December 2021
Key decision: No.
Item number: 7

Page 16

Outline and recommendations


Schools Forum to note the final 2020/21 Outturn position (Early Years) and to agree
the application of funding as defined in this report.



Schools Forum to note the ongoing pressure on the High Needs Block and the
mitigation plan.

Timeline of engagement and decision-making


December 2021 – Agree application of funding brought forward from 2020/21
and inform all stakeholders either just before mid - January or February

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Page 17
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports

Summary
1

The purpose of this report is to update Schools Forum with regards to
the final 2020/21 Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) position in respect
of Early Years Funding. And to provide an updated position on the
2021/22 DSG.

Background
2

With regards to 2020/21, Schools forum will be aware that the DSG
was finalised, pending two elements:a. Underspend on Schools Block (circa £367k). See report on term
time only.
b. Early Years Funding Block £1.6m underspend, subject to
clawback.

DSG 2020/21 update
3

The early years block settlement is always provisional pending the
final position normally notified in June of the preceding year. As a
consequence of Covid, the Department for Education (DfE) undertook
further data cleansing including supporting the formula with additional
protection to manage loss of funding arising from low numbers largely
as a consequence of Covid. This has resulted in a delay of the data
being finalised.

4

We have now had the final agreement from the DfE which is shown
in the table below:2020/21
Outturn
underspend

2 YEAR OLD ENTITLEMENT
3 & 4 YEAR OLD SUPPLEMENT
EARLY YEARS QUALITY AND SUFFICIENCY
TEAM
EY DISABILITY ACCESS FUND
EY INCLUSION FUND
3 & 4 YEAR OLD ENTITLEMENT
EYS: DEPRIVATION
EARLY YEARS PUPIL PREMIUM

DfE Clawback

£'000
-£306.3
£0.0

£'000
-£122.4
-£13.4

-£211.3
-£84.3
-£530.1
-£221.1
£0.0
-£14.8

£0.0
£0.0
£0.0
-£34.3
£0.0
£2.9

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve. Page 18
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports

Provider
Specific

LA Managed
£'000
£0.0
£0.0

£'000
-£183.8
£13.4

-£211.3
£0.0
-£530.1
£0.0
£0.0
£0.0

£0.0
-£84.3
£0.0
-£186.8
£0.0
-£17.7

EYS: CONTINGENCY
Total

-£262.1
-£1,629.9

£0.0
-£167.3

£0.0
-£741.4

-£262.1
-£721.3

LA funding 5% holdback

5

The table notes an unclaimed balance of £1.462m (being the total
underspend of £1.629m less £167k clawback. Schools Forum will note
that of this fundng £211k relates to LA 5% holdback. It is proposed that
this funding continues to support the LA function in particular the fall out
of funding for Cental School Services Block (CSSB).

6

The £530k is being utilised to support children who have moved from
nursery class to reception in the Autumn term. This is because there
was a significant drop in applications over last year as many schools did
not open their nurseries or settings and therefore dealt with restricted
numbers. In addition there were lower numbers of children taking up
their place due to parental hesitancy and the impact of remote working.

7

Applications for Inclusion Funding for these children is being processed
along with applications for children in nursery classes and provision.

8

This leaves a net balance of circa £721k to be redistributed amongst all
providers. Due to the late notification of the final figures, it has not been
possible to undertake a detailed review of data verses funding. However
we consider the fairest view would be to consider the total number of
hours (pupils) supported by each provider and allocate this funding as a
one off reimbursement. Schools Forum is asked to agree the
distribution on this basis.

2021/22 DSG funding outturn position
9

At the time of writing we are finalising detailed review of the High Needs
Block. The expectation continues to be that the High Needs Block will
overspend by between £5m to £6m. This would therefore result in a
cumulative overspend position of circa £9m.

10 The number of EHCPs continues to cause a pressure as shown in the
table below

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Page 19
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports

Phase – EHCPs
FY17/18 Used As Base Line
FY18/19
FY19/20
FY20/21
FY 21/22
Increase on Baseline Numbers
Increase on Baseline %

Under 5s

Primary

Secondary

Postsecondary

Grand
Total

42
24
37
74
90
48
76.2%

831
889
929
1027
1036
205
23.6%

769
821
887
974
1056
287
26.7%

537
626
774
931
1057
520
73.4%

2179
2360
2627
3006
3239
1060
38.0%

Year on
Year
increases

11 The table below shows the splt between in-borough and out-borough
placements.
Borough – EHCPs
FY17/18 Used As Base Line
FY18/19
FY19/20
FY 20/21
FY 21/22
Increase on Baseline Numbers
Increase on Baseline %

LBL

OOB

1559
1653
1789
1953
2054
495
25.3%

620
707
838
1053
1185
565
69.8%

Grand
Total
2179
2360
2627
3006
3239
1060
38.0%

12

The Early Years Block remains provisional. The DfE has asked Local
Authorities to undertake a further return which may inform the data on
which the provisional figures are based, thus creating a further risk.

13

Central Schools Services Block is expected to be on target for this
year largely as some costs are supported from General Fund and
wider grants.

14

Schools block is expected to be on target as previoulsy noted with
schools forum.

Financial Implications

15

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The
proposal to support schools in finanacial difficulties demonstrates the
joint working relationship between Lewisham council and Schools
forum, to support all schools towards longer term financial stability.

Equalities Impact

16

There are no direct equalities implications arising from this report as
all providers would benefit from the reallocation of Early Years

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve. Page 20
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports

181
267
379
233

Funding, being the main decision item.
Legal Implications

17

There are no direct legal implications arising from this report.

Author - Mala Dadlani Strategic Business Partner - CYP
Mala.dadlani@lewisham.gov.uk

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Page 21
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports

SEND High Needs Block
£22,110,528

957 children placed out of borough
EY = 13
Primary = 114
Secondary = 450
+ 16 = 172
+ 19 = 208
Average cost per placement £23,104

The OVERSPEND on the
High Needs Block for
2021-22 is predicated
to be around

£5 million

600

£22,892,000

Children could have been
educated in Lewisham

2000 children placed in Lewisham schools and
settings
EY = 59
Primary = 957
Secondary = 729
+ 16 = 116
+ 19 = 139
Average cost per placement £11,446.

Meeting Need in borough

We currently have just 10 resource bases located in Lewisham Schools
PRIMARY

3 x ASD = 58 places
1 x S&L = 18 places (2 spaces)
2 x CfD = 14 places (5 spaces)
Additional places required

ASD = 36
ASD & SEMH = 30

SECONDARY

2 x ASD = 55 places
1 x S&L = 25 places
1x CfD = 6 places
Additional places required

ASD = 65
S&L = 60
MLD/Socially able = 30

National average % of
Lewisham average % of
EHCPs per school is 3.3% EHCPs per school is 3.8%
Number of schools where %
is HIGHER than national
Number of schools where %
is in line or LOWER than
national

Number of schools where %
is HIGHER than Lewisham

16

Number of schools where %
is in line or LOWER than
Lewisham

63

19
60 Page 22

Agenda Item 8

Schools Forum

Report title: Dedicated Schools Grant 2022/23
Date: 16th December 2021
Key decision: No.
Item number: 8

Item number

Page 23

Outline and recommendations
The purpose of this report is to agree the principle and approach for the 2022/23 schools
funding – Authority Proforma Tool (APT) submission to the DfE.
Schools Forum is asked to agree guiding principles including:1

Continuation with the National Funding Formula in the deployment of the Schools
Block.

2

Agree to any growth funding to be included on the APT tool, with a minimal amount
in the Growth Fund Budget to fund incremental support for bulge class and
potentially any unplanned in-year growth/bulges.

3

De-delegation to be in line with the current basis plus inflation.

4

De-delegation – agree to receive a detailed report for consideration on functions
previously supported by the Education Services Grant.

5

Minimum Funding Guarantee (MFG) – consider two options for MFG:A
MFG set at max 2% (estimate), with any residue to support
pressures in HNB.
B
0.5% transfer from Schools Block, followed by MFG set at
affordability.

Schools forum is also asked to note the continuation of financial risk associated with High
Needs (demand led) and Early Years Funding (lack of clarity arising from COVID-related
estimations, in payment terms and funding receivable).
Schools forum is also asked to note and agree to receive further updates as more
information is made available at the January meeting and the Summer meeting.
Schools forum is further asked to approve the application of the increase in funding for EY
as detailed in this report.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve. Page 24
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports

Timeline of engagement and decision-making
At the time of writing, a partial Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) settlement has been advised
by the DfE, which was the main matter for discussion at the last schools forum meeting.
The final settlement is due just ahead of Christmas, with a submission to the DfE due 21st
January 2022. This will result in an incredibly short time for Officers to undertake detailed
work - Schools forum to note that this will mean that the lead in time will be reduced from 5
working days to 3 (potentially).
The December meeting is commonly used for discussion between the Local Authority and
Schools forum to agree the approach to facilitate the finalisation of the APT submission.
January 20th - a further meeting of Schools forum to support the submission of the APT tool
to the DfE.
The January schools forum meeting will also be used to further consider the High Needs
Recovery Plan.
January meeting also – any updates on “Term Time Only” review.

Summary
1

Main focus of this report will be for Schools Forum to consider and agree main
components of the funding formula that will enable Lewisham Council to provide a draft
funding formula (known as the APT tool), to the Department for Education (DfE), in
January.

2

Please note we will provide further update on various risks including:

High Needs Block



Early Years Funding

3

CSSB

4

Term Time Only

Background
5

Schools Forum will be aware that each Local Authority is required to submit their agreed
Local Schools Funding Formula to the DfE by the 21st January 2022 (primary and
secondary).

6

The deadline for producing this information is very challenging as the financial settlement
is unlikely to be known until around 22nd December 2021. For this reason, their could
potentially be a delay to the reports dispatch process - although every effort will be taken
to meet the required timescales. Schools Forum to note

7

The APT tool submission is mainly based on the Schools Block, however the Local
Authority is responsble for ensuring overall affordability across the whole DSG.

8

Schools Forum will be aware that the APT modelling tool is provided by the DfE. The
tool is largely a pre-populated data modelling tool.

9

Using the APT tool, the LA determines each school’s budget share and associated
Minimum Funding Guarantee (MFG). The MFG is based on overall affordability and is
expected to be minimum 0.5% to a maximum 2% per pupil uplift (based on pupil led
characteristics e.g AWPU, Free School Meals etc). Subject to affordability we will aspire
to as close to 2% as possible.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Page 25
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports

10

Once the APT is submitted it remains provisional until the DfE has undertaken validation
and approved the submission for accurancy and compliance.

11

Special Schools are funded based on their operating model of places and top up.
Funding for Special Schools is from the High Needs Block and is not part of the APT
reconcilation.

12

Equally nursery schools, PVIs and the early years component for primary schools are
funded from the Early Years Block and are not part of the APT tool process. No
information has been received with regards to EY funding. The January report will
provide update based on the funding settlement.

13

There is a legal requirement for all schools to be advised of their budget share by the
end of February 2022. It is at this point schools will be formally advised of their delegated
budget share.

14

This report will aim to gain the necessary mandate to enable officers to provide schools
forum with final funding information to enable both the above deadlines to be met.

DSG 2022/23
15

Schools forum was advised of the partial settlement for 2022/23 at their meeting in October
2020. It is anticipated that support for the National insurance 1.25% uplift will be in the form
of a separate grant.

Proposed application of the Schools Block
16

Alignment to the National Funding Formula - Continue to progress with the Principles
of the National Funding Formula in full. This includes using all funding values as
determined by the DfE. Schools Forum to agree (Primary and Secondary)

17

Minimum Funding Guarantee (MFG) uplift – the DfE requirement is that all schools will
receive an uplift of between 0.5% and 2.00%. Subject to affordability it is proposed that the
formula will endeavour to deliver on or as close to the 2%. Schools Forum to agree
(Primary and Secondary)

De-Delegation
18

The DfE guidance enables Local Authorities to provide services centrally which are funded
by a process known as de-delegation. This only applies to mainstream schools and not
academies. As such, funding levels agreed will reduce should any school convert following
finalisation of the budget process.

19

The de-delegation process must be agreed every year and supported (by means of voting)
by the representative of each phase at Schools Forums. The proposal for 2022/23
delegation are in line with the current de-delegation levels. It is proposed that de-delegation
continues in line with current levels plus 2% uplift where indicated, and supports the
following:
A
B
C

Administration of Free School Meals (£60k plus 2%) = £61.2k
Trade union and non-sickness supply scheme (Maternity Fund) (£1.122m plus 2%),
= £1.14
School Improvement – to support the work of the Lewisham Learning Partnership.
(£300k). It should be noted that the School Improvement and Brokerage Grant is
very likely to be reduced by 50% for 2022/23. The grant supports the central funded
element of the Lewisham Learning Partnership. Schools forum is asked to consider
increasing the de-delegation to meet the shortfall or to agree to the reduction in
service. Depending on the final pupil number information which drives the de-

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve. Page 26
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports

delegation calculation, the value will be circa £4.70 per pupil. This translates to circa
£1000 per a one form entry school. Schools forum is asked to refer to the attached
consultation response which details our views on the cessation of the grant and
provides information on the work currently undertaken by Lewisham Learning to
support schools.
Schools Contingency – to support costs that should not be reasonably incurred
by a governing body. (£557k). Please note that Schools Forum has agreed a two
year finance support package, 2022/23 as agreed by Schools Forum in October
2021.
Schools Forum to agree (Primary and Secondary)

D

De-delegation Types
Schools contingency
Free school meals eligibility
Licences/ subscriptions
Staff costs supply cover
Lewisham Learning

Current
£557,604
£60,131
£181,863
£1,127,500
£300,000

Option 1
£557,604
£61,333
£181,863
£1,150,050
£300,000

Option 2
£557,604
£61,333
£181,863
£1,150,050
£450,000

uplift of 2%
£ for £ to recoupment level
shortfall from school improvement and brokerage
grant

Overall duty to ensure spending is within DSG
20

The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG): conditions of grant 2020 to 2021 paragraph 5.2, requires
that any local authority (LA) with an overall deficit on its DSG account at the end of 2019 to
2020 financial year, or whose DSG surplus has substantially reduced during the year, be able
to present a plan to the Department for Education (DfE) for managing their future DSG spend.

21

The DfE provides a very detailed and comprehensive return to be completed.

22

Schools Forum will be aware that Lewisham has raised concerns around the ability to deliver
SEN provision within the funding allocated. As previously stated, this position is not unique
to Lewisham and has been discussed at various government forums including Parliament. In
recognition of the challenges, the DfE has given additional resources towards high needs.
Unfortunately, with the increase in demand (activity/price), expenditure is more than the
funding given. Schools Forum will also be aware that a mitigation plan is in place, led by the
SEN team. Again there is a challenge between the pace at which the mitigation plan can be
embedded against the increasing demands, which has been exacerbated by COVID.

23

To put this into context, the table below shows the increase in EHCP since April of this year:

Phase - EHCPs
FY17/18 Used As Base Line
FY18/19
FY19/20
FY20/21
FY 21/22
Increase on Baseline Numbers
Increase on Baseline %

Under 5s

Primary

Secondary

Postsecondary

Grand
Total

42
24
37
74
90
48
76.2%

831
889
929
1027
1036
205
23.6%

769
821
887
974
1056
287
26.7%

537
626
774
931
1057
520
73.4%

2179
2360
2627
3006
3239
1060
38.0%

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Page 27
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports

Year on
Year
increases
181
267
379
233

24

Schools Forum will note that the greatest area of increase is post-secondary. At this stage
further exploratory work is being undertaken to understand why, however it is anticipated that
there are many reasons for this increasing: Limited job opportunities in the current climate so young people want to stay in education
longer.
 Greater awareness that EHCP plans are supported to 0-25.
 Greater learning opportunities for young people with EHCP.

25

Detailed work is currently being undertaken to review the “soft close” position for the high
needs overspend post-secondary transfer. The overspend is anticipated to be between £5m
to £6m (allowing for growth in the later part of the year). This would increase the pressure
from a current cumulative £4m to circa £9m /£10m

26

Whilst we note an increase in funding for 2022/23 (potentially £5m) this will not be sufficient
to finance the overspend from 2021/22.

27

As with any funding allocations, there is a requirement to spend within the allocation. This
report (and previous reports to Schools Forum), have highlighted pressures arising from a
combination of demand, type of need and cost pressures (including inflation/supply and
demand/ overall growth). Whilst it is noted that the funding for next year is expected to
increase by circa £5m, we anticipate demand/cost drivers to potentially exceed this figure.
Schools forum is asked to support in principle the transfer of 0.5% towards the high needs
block. Lewisham is expected to progress towards a formal recovery plan with the DfE and
this would support some aspect of the solution. It is anticipated that the additional 0.5% circa
£1m, will enable the mitigation plan to embed. If this request is not supported, then part of
the mitigation plan will require a review of discretionary versus statutory services including
potentially reduction in spend falling on preventative measures. It is re-emphasised that the
obligation and solutions to spend within the budget allocation is a joint responsibility on
Lewisham Council and schools forum. It should be further noted that it is not prohibited for
the General Fund to subsidise this grant.

Transfer request of 0.5% to support the High Needs Block
28

Schools Forum is asked to consider a potential transfer of 0.5% from the Schools Block to the
High Needs for 2022/23.

29

To enable this consideration it is proposed that two options are put to schools forum:a. APT using full funding.
b. Impact of transfer of 0.5%.

30

Schools Forum will recall that in 2021/22, the funding was sufficient to meet the maximum 2%
increase, with a residue of £1m.

31

Under the regulations, a consultation with all schools is required. Schools forum is asked
to agree that Lewisham undertakes this brief consultation with schools to be
considered alongside the holistic DSG funding issue.
Schools Forum to agree
(Primary and Secondary)
EXTRACT FROM DfE GUIDANCE

1. Subject to the paragraphs below, local authorities must not allocate money
designated in the DSG settlement tables as schools block to items of spend
other than budget shares for mainstream primary and secondary schools
(excluding funding for nursery classes and for places reserved for pupils with
special educational needs), or money retained centrally for growth in schools,

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve. Page 28
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports

as defined in paragraphs [4] to [7] of Schedule 2 to the School and Early Years
Finance (England) Regulations 2020.
2. Local authorities may allocate up to 0.5% of money designated as school block
to other items with the consent of the schools forum.
3. Local authorities must consult with all local maintained schools and academies
if they propose to allocate schools block money to other items. The schools
forum must take into account the outcome of that consultation before deciding
whether to give their consent.
4. The local authority can apply to the Secretary of State for permission to allocate
schools block money to other items if they do not secure the consent of the
schools forum as above, or if they wish to allocate more of the schools block
money to other items than would be permitted under point 2. In the case of the
Secretary of State giving such permission, this may be for all or part of the sum
requested by the local authority and may be given subject to conditions.
Early Years Funding
32

We have now received further information on Early Years Funding. Overall the position
is favourable with a 21p hourly rate increase in 2 year old funding and a 17p hourly rate
increase in 3& 4 year old.
The table below shows the application of the increase across the current Lewisham
Funding Formula:Schools Forum is asked to note and approve this application. Which notes 90% of the
2 year old funding being passported to providers (19p) and equally 15p of the 3 & 4 year
old funding (87%)

2 YEAR OLD ENTITLEMENT
3 & 4 YEAR OLD
SUPPLEMENT
EARLY YEARS QUALITY AND
SUFFICIENCY TEAM
EY DISABILITY ACCESS
FUND
EY INCLUSION FUND
3 & 4 YEAR OLD
ENTITLEMENT
EYS: DEPRIVATION
EARLY YEARS PUPIL
PREMIUM
EYS: CONTINGENCY
Increases agreed

2021/22
2 year
old
Current
£6.000

2022/23
2 year
old
Movement %
Proposed
£6.190
£0.190 90%

2021/22
3 & 4 year
old
Current
£0.000

2022/23
3&4
year old
Movement %
Proposed
£0.000
£0.000 0.0%

£0.000

£0.000

£0.000

0%

£0.000

£0.000

£0.000

0.0%

£0.000

£0.000

£0.000

0%

£0.288

£0.297

£0.009

5.0%

£0.000
£0.508

£0.000
£0.520

£0.000
£0.012

0%
6%

£0.000
£0.155

£0.000
£0.160

£0.000
£0.005

0.0%
2.7%

£0.000
£0.000

£0.000
£0.000

£0.000
£0.000

0%
0%

£5.000
£0.210

£5.148
£0.216

£0.148 86.8%
£0.006 3.6%

£0.000
£0.152
£6.660

£0.000
£0.160
£6.870
£0.210

£0.000
0%
£0.008
4%
£0.210 100%

£0.000
£0.107
£5.760

£0.000
£0.110
£5.930
£0.170

£0.000
£0.003
£0.170

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Page 29
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports

0.0%
1.9%
100%

This means that the budget will be as follows:-

2 YEAR OLD ENTITLEMENT
3 & 4 YEAR OLD SUPPLEMENT
EARLY YEARS QUALITY AND SUFFICIENCY TEAM
EY DISABILITY ACCESS FUND
EY INCLUSION FUND
3 & 4 YEAR OLD ENTITLEMENT
EYS: DEPRIVATION
EARLY YEARS PUPIL PREMIUM
EYS: CONTINGENCY
TOTAL FUNDING

2021/22

2022/23

Budget

Budget
(assuming
update)

£2,759,257 £2,846,632
£447,929
£461,367
£1,013,707 £1,054,611
£91,635
£119,200
£785,024
£806,722
£17,784,342 £18,309,227
£746,942
£768,988
£75,988
£86,024
£461,065
£465,398
£24,165,889 £24,918,169

Movement

% uplift

£87,375
£13,438
£40,904
£27,565
£21,698
£524,885
£22,046
£10,036
£4,333
£752,280

3%
3%
4%
30%
3%
3%
3%
13%
1%

In addition there are also increases in:Early Years Pupil premium 7p from 53p to 60p (this is how LA’s are funded, local method
applies for local targeting of funding)
Disability Access Funding has increased from £615 to £800
Supplementary Factor 3.5%
Schools forum should further note that the above budgets will remain provisional until the EY
data is cleansed; likely to be some point after June 2022. For this reason it remains imperative
that a sound contingency figure is included in the budget setting process.

Financial Implications
33

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

Equalities Impact
34

There are no direct equalities implications arising from this report.

Legal Implications
35

There are no direct legal implications arising from this report.

Author - Mala Dadlani Strategic Business Partner - CYP
Mala.dadlani@lewisham.gov.uk

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve. Page 30
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports

Lewisham Response -

Government consultation:

Reforming how LAs’ school improvement
functions are funded
Questions
Question 1: We believe that instances of Councils exercising formal intervention powers
remain relatively low, and that since its introduction, this grant has primarily supported
improvement functions such as early support and challenge to improve individual school
performance, which overlaps with wider (non-core) improvement provision.
Do you agree that this is the case? If not, please explain.
We believe that no evidence has been presented to support the DfE’s belief that the grant
has primarily supported ‘non-core’ improvement provision or the nature of such provision.
We are not aware of any activity by the DfE to attempt to collect or share information
relating to the current costs associated with Local Authorities (LAs) providing ‘core’
provision. Indeed, form our collaborations with school improvement departments from LAs
across London, we believe that an information gathering exercise would find evidence that
the grant supports core school improvement provision in most LAs.
We would have expected the DfE to undertake engagement with LAs to substantiate their
views before setting out this consultation paper. We urge the DfE to re-consider the
removal of the grant and to undertake an evidence gathering exercise.
In Lewisham the funding is directly used to target core school improvement activity, as it
funds the “Lewisham Learning Partnership”. The partnership, in collaboration with
schools forum (who also make a contribution as part of their existing de-delegation)
provides essential school improvement support. As such, this is core school improvement
activity, contributing to the avoidance of a necessity to invoke formal intervention powers.
The current Schools Causing Concern guidance gives an overview of what LAs are
expected to use the Improvement Monitoring and Brokering Grant for and in Lewisham we
use the grant in line with this guidance in the following ways;


Understand the performance of maintained schools in their area, using data as a
starting point to identify any that are underperforming, while working with them to
explore ways to support progress;
We do this by undertaking an annual evaluation of all schools to identify any schools that
may be at risk of underperforming, allocating each school a suitably qualified school
improvement partner who visits the school at least once a year to challenge and validate
the evaluation and agree the school improvement needs and brokering support.


Work closely with the relevant RSC, diocese and other local partners to ensure
schools receive the support they need to improve;
We do this by meeting relevant partners regularly (at least three times a year) to share
information. This ensures a coordinated approach with no duplication of resource.

Page 31



Where underperformance has been recognised in a maintained school, proactively
work with the relevant RSC, combining local and regional expertise to ensure the right
approach, including sending warning notices and using intervention powers where this
will improve leadership and standards;
In Lewisham our proactive and preventative approach through core school improvement
provision means we have no schools judged to be inadequate or requiring statutory
interventions. We believe this is strong evidence that using the grant as we do is a
successful approach


Encourage good and outstanding maintained schools to take responsibility for their
own improvement; support other schools; and enable other schools to access the
support they need to improve.
We do this by brokering leaders from good and outstanding schools to support other
schools and by facilitating practice-sharing hubs. This is a successful strategy but is
dependent on the LA coordinating, providing training, agreeing protocols and quality
assurance
As noted in the consultation, the activities above are deemed to be ‘core’ responsibilities.
Lewisham, in line with grant conditions undertakes the statutory responsibilities
associated with school improvement.
LAs have a statutory duty within education to promote high standards and the fulfilment of
learning potential by every child and young person. They also have a duty to understand
and have accountability for the performance of their schools. These two duties go hand in
hand and this grant provides LAs with vital funding to fulfil both.
DfE will recall that previously the education support grant (ESG) provided LAs with
resources to undertake such duties. The ESG was severely reduced with a small amount
streamlined to the Central Schools Services Block. The CSSB grant is itself as good as
being eliminated on a similar presumption.
For a LA to be able to fulfil its role effectively it needs to work closely with all its schools.
This includes activities such as annual (or potentially more frequent) visits to schools to
support them in monitoring, and further visits to explore how the LA can best facilitate and
broker support for the school to improve. Such work cannot be completed remotely or
based purely on a desktop analysis of published data (particularly in light of the pandemic
where there is limited published data available).
In Lewisham, for example each school is allocated a school improvement partner who
visits the school regularly to meet with senior leaders and governors. Schools considered
at higher risk of underperformance are visited more regularly. In those schools
improvement plans are agreed, monitored and evaluated every six weeks. We use our
local knowledge to identify good and outstanding leaders who work successfully with other
schools to bring about improvement.
Given that such functions are listed within the government’s own guidance as ‘core’ LA
responsibilities, we are deeply concerned about removal the grant and the impact it will
have on our ability to carry out these functions and to provide crucial support for school
improvement.
In the removal of both the School Improvement and Brokerage Grant and the CSSB, there
appears to be an underlying transfer of costs to schools without the transferring of similar
funding levels to the Schools Block. As such we would argue that this is a transfer of
burden to schools, i.e. a requirement to fund activity with no supporting transfer of funds.

Page 32

In our view, the removal of this funding will result in the LA having no funding to support
crucial intervention/prevention work. The outcome of this is likely to result in negative
impact for schools and consequently outcomes for pupils.
The proposed removal of this grant and the transfer of burden to schools will create
inequity for children and young people according to the governance of the school they
attend and a form of penalty for those schools that genuinely wish to be part of a LA family
of schools.
Our view remains that no child should suffer or be disadvantaged on the basis of the type
of school they attend. We believe that withdrawing this grant risk doing precisely that.
Approximately four million children are still taught in maintained schools in England and
the government has a responsibility to ensure that all schools are supported to be as good
as they can be and to continue improving, irrespective of governance arrangements.
For a LA, where the majority of our schools are maintained, we feel that the removal of
this grant will have significant implications on our ability to provide continued support and
improve standards and outcomes for our young people.
We believe that there remains a strong case to retain the grant. We would suggest an
approach to ensure that the grant accurately reflects the number of maintained schools
within an LA through a tapering approach to reflect the number of schools the LA retains
responsibility for would be far more appropriate.

Question 2: We are proposing to (i) remove the Grant (Proposal 1), and (ii) enable
Councils to de-delegate funds via their schools forum to ensure they are sufficiently
funded to exercise all of their improvement activities, including all core improvement
activities (Proposal 2). Do you agree that, taken together, these proposals will allow
Councils to continue to ensure they are adequately funded for core improvement
activities; and therefore do not impose a new burden? If not, please explain.
It is not clear from the consultation, or the accompanying documents what happens to the
funding if this grant is to be removed- i.e. that the funding will move to the Schools Block.
From a schools’ perspective this is a real term cut in their funding. The outcome of this
proposal would be LA Maintained Schools incurring new and additional costs so that LAs
can carry out their core functions.
As previously stated, this consultation needs to be considered alongside the wider
proposal to eliminate the CSSB which in itself funds statutory functions, where again the
burden passes to schools to fund (irrespective if the end position is buyback, dedelegation) for core statutory services.
Whilst there have been announcements of additional funding being allocated to schools
as a result of the recent Comprehensive Spending Review 21, the de-delegation of funds
for LA school improvement provision from maintained schools via schools forum would
likely result in no or little real increase in schools’ budgets.
This is in the context of a number of other new or increased demands on their budgets
 National Insurance increases
 Impact of inflation
 Expected public sector pay rises
 The move to a £30,000 (£34k for inner London) starting salary for new teachers
and the impact of this on other pay grades

Page 33





Movement in pupil numbers
Unfunded SEN pressures
Impact of Covid- increased health & safety costs & loss of additional income
from use of premises etc.

We would also question the reasoning behind replacing one centrally funded, relatively
simple, system that appears to be working reasonably well, with a more complex system
that will require separate negotiations across every different LA.
We note the proposal that the LA can effectively appeal directly to the Secretary of State
to overrule the Schools Forum decision if “the Council had demonstrated such dedelegation was necessary to ensure the Council is adequately funded to exercise core
improvement activities.”
However, we would again question why it is necessary to create such new bureaucratic
mechanisms, which are likely to disharmonise the relationship between schools forum and
the Council. The process is likely to divert valuable resources away from providing the
support schools need.
We are concerned by the stance taken in the consultation that this proposal “would
provide a smoother transition as more schools become academies and move out of
Council control.” We believe this erodes the autonomy of school leaders, governing
bodies and wider school communities to decide upon the structures that best suit their
school and its pupils. In Lewisham we have successful models of effective collaboration in
both the maintained sector and MATs.
We believe that such fundamental decisions around funding mechanism should be subject
to a full and comprehensive evidence gathering exercise and public consultation. We also
believe that greater alignment could be achieved by using the grant model for all schools
instead of a top-slicing / de-delegation approach, which may not be the best way to fund
core school improvement provision whether that be in a Multi Academy Trust or a LA.
Question 3: Bearing in mind Proposals 1 and 2, are there any aspects of our guidance to
Councils on their role in school improvement which could usefully be clarified to aid
understanding of what Councils are accountable for with respect to improvement and how
it should be funded? (For example, our Schools Causing Concern guidance.)
The current Schools Causing Concern guidance outlines what LAs are expected to use
the Improvement Monitoring and Brokering grant for:






Understand the performance of maintained schools in their area, using data as a
starting point to identify any that are underperforming, while working with them to
explore ways to support progress;
Work closely with the relevant RSC, diocese and other local partners to ensure
schools receive the support they need to improve;
Where underperformance has been recognised in a maintained school, proactively
work with the relevant RSC, combining local and regional expertise to ensure the right
approach, including sending warning notices and using intervention powers where this
will improve leadership and standards; and
Encourage good and outstanding maintained schools to take responsibility for their
own improvement; support other schools; and enable other schools to access the
support they need to improve.

Page 34

We would suggest that the DfE, in partnership with LAs and schools, develops specific
examples of the sorts of activities that are and are not expected of LAs linked to each of
these bullet points.
For example as the guidance suggests, data can only be a starting point for
understanding school performance and in Lewisham, this involves visits to schools,
conversations with school leaders and consideration of how schools work with multiagency partners to deliver on key local and national priorities which contribute to improved
outcomes for pupils..
‘Encouraging good and outstanding maintained schools to take responsibility for their own
improvement’ is unlikely to happen without LA involvement with a cost element in
delivering this work.
The consultation assumes (without evidence presented) that LAs might be using this grant
to fund non-core improvement work. As noted above, in Lewisham there is clear evidence
to the contrary, as outlined in our response to Question 1. Lewisham Learning
(partnership with schools and LA), utilises this funding totally in the spirit of the grant and
have members on its board from both the LA and schools community. The funding is used
directly in line with the grant conditions and in delivering our statutory requirements.
The grant also allows LAs to provide constructive challenge to schools. We believe that
for schools to maintain improvement progress, support is clearly essential, but
professional, constructive challenge is also required – a role frequently undertaken by LAs
and certainly in Lewisham.
This challenge must be both in terms of ‘core’ school improvement and within the wider
context of Children’s Services. We would like further clarification of the ‘non-core’ school
improvement work that the DfE has identified as being funded through the grant. Such
‘non-core’ work could well be crucial in ensuring all schools continue on a trajectory of
ongoing improvement and improving holistic outcomes for children and young people.
Keeping children safe is a key example of an element of school function/performance that
needs LA co-ordination and facilitation through a partnership approach, which may be lost
if the LA role in school improvement is diminished.
Lewisham Council reiterates that the proposals in this consultation, in the context of
increasing financial pressures on schools (and indeed LAs themselves) are likely to mean
the loss of crucial school improvement activity across an LA, be it ‘core’ or ‘non-core’,
which will ultimately impact on children and young people. We believe that this must be
maintained and protected so that we can fulfil our statutory duty within education to
promote high standards and the fulfilment of learning potential by every child and young
person, regardless of the governance of the school they attend.
Lewisham Council urges DfE to work closely with LAs to properly understand which
aspects of their current improvement work could be lost if these proposals are adopted.
Question 4: The Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) requires that public bodies consider
the potential effects of key decisions on groups with protected characteristics. The
relevant protected characteristics for the purposes of the PSED are: sex; race; disability;
religion or belief; sexual orientation; pregnancy or maternity; gender reassignment; and
age.

Page 35

Please let us know, providing evidence where possible, if you believe any of the proposals
set out in this consultation will have the potential to have an impact on specific groups, in
particular those with relevant protected characteristics.
Lewisham Council would welcome publication of the department’s own Equality Impact
Assessment in relation to this consultation. We believe that the proposals in the
consultation are likely to create inequity for children and young people according to the
governance of the school they attend and would like to understand the implications of this
in terms of on groups with protected characteristics.

Page 36

